
 

               

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes                                       Page 1                                               April 4, 2016 

Office of Board of Selectmen 
143 Main Street, P.O. Box 310, Belmont, New Hampshire 03220-0310 

Telephone: (603) 267-8300  Fax: (603) 267-8327 
 

 
 
 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 
 

Monday, April 4, 2016 5:00 p.m. 
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 
 
 Chairman Ruth Mooney called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Also present were 
Selectman Jon Pike, Selectman Ronald Cormier, Town Administrator Jeanne Beaudin, 
Administrative Assistant Cary Lagace, Public Works Director Jim Fortin, Kevin Sturgeon, 
Donna Cilley, Reggie Caldwell, Wallace Rhodes, Brian Watterson, Linda Frawley, Steven Hess, 
Priscilla Annis, Donna Hepp, Shayne Duggan, Mark Mooney and reporter Jim Clark. 
 

Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
Minutes 
 
 Selectman Pike moved the minutes of March 21, 2016 as written. Selectman Cormier 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Abatements, Manifests, Exemptions & Credits  
 
 Chairman Mooney moved to approve the abatements, manifests, exemptions and credits; 
seconded by Selectman Cormier, unanimously approved. 
 
Heritage Commission Updates 
 
 Linda Frawley advised the Board that the Bandstand was determined eligible for the New 
Hampshire State Register of Historic Places on March 2, 2016 and can be considered at the 
spring meeting of the State Historic Resources Council, if Select Board approval received by 
April 13 for the nomination; with it being publicized in May.  Linda noted that this will be the 
third building listed with the State Register, the other two properties, the Belmont Mill and 
Province Road Meeting House were listed on the State Register in 2015 and 2003, respectively. 
The Belmont Public Library was also distinguished with inclusion on the National Register of 
Historical Properties in 1985. Markers have been placed by the Heritage Commission at all three 
locations in recent years. The large white sign on the Bandstand will be removed and replaced 
with the bronze plaque. 
 

Linda revealed that the following performances as part of the Heritage series will take 
place at the bandstand on; Saturday, May 21 – Heritage & Preservation Fair – 10:30 am to 1:00 
pm; Saturday, July 2 – Red, White & Rock - Bandstand concert – 4:30 pm to 8:30 pm; Sunday, 
August 28 – Newmont Military Band – Bandstand concert – 2:00 pm; October  16-23 -  NH 



 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 April 4, 2016 

History Week  - Community Heritage Awards and communitywide open house/tours. The 
Corner Meeting House will be used as a backup facility for these performances in the event that 
it rains. Additionally there has been discussion regarding bringing back the annual community 
picnic. 
 

Linda noted that the community partner and sponsor list currently includes Belmont 
Public Library, Belmont Historical Society, Friends of the Bandstand and the John M. Sargent 
Fund. 
 

Linda advised that the discussions and review with NH DOT and Division of Historical 
Cultural Resources and other staff were productive and informative. Noting a prior Route 106 
section study revealed two properties; privately owned farms that were deemed eligible for the 
National Register in the early 1990s. Linda added that the current project on route 106 won’t 
include widening so those two farm properties won’t be affected. 
 

For NH History Week the Heritage Commission will give three organizations a total of 
$2500 for permanent heritage plantings. They will include the Province Road Meeting House, 
the BRATT Trail and Penstock Park.  Linda Following efforts to have Belmont’s first marker 
installed on Route 140, another will be sought for “Waterways and Dams” providing information 
on the breaching of Badger dam. 
 

Linda asked Wallace Rhodes to speak regarding recent information that he found 
regarding Belmont Village history. Wallace explained that he had heard stories about a 
locomotive explosion in the area of the Mill and recently did internet research that provided a 
small amount of information but he intends to further research it. What he found indicated that 
on January 11, 1894 there has a locomotive at the Mill that ran out of water and blew up. There 
was 2 people injured and there was property damage as far away as Johnson Street. 

 
Linda explained that Wallace had spent time with Richard Kipphut who was doing a 

fellowship with Plymouth State University and he did a preliminary survey report of the housing 
on the northern end of the village. They hope to expand on the report and provide further 
accuracy in the future. 
 
 Selectman Cormier moved to approve the submission of application for the Bandstand to 
the New Hampshire State Register of Historic Places. Selectman Pike seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Discussion with Donna Cilley regarding Town Meeting 
 

Donna Cilley was present to give the Board an overview of what she heard from the 
taxpayers on voting day. She took the day off and stood out greeting people and explaining the 
aquifer petition that was privately submitted. She had gone to the Land Use office and received 
information on the ordinance and created an educational form. It was astounding to be able to 
speak with as many people as she did who had no idea what they were coming to vote on; 
probably about 50%. Many people didn’t have accurate information or little to no information. 
People thought the industrial zone is only on Route 140, and the shocked that the industrial areas 
would be removed. She commented that the issue of changing zoning areas came up several 
times and also the development of route 106; why it hasn’t happened yet. Donna expressed that it 
has been 15 years since zoning was looked at and as times have changed, perhaps it’s time to 
look at it again. 
 



 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 3 April 4, 2016 

Donna indicated that she tried to explain to people that hasn’t been reviewed recently and 
perhaps it should be brought up but review before eliminating the industrial zoning. She told 
people she would come to the Board and suggest that maybe the Route 106 corridor needs to be 
looked at and perhaps some rezoning considered.  
 

There was discussion of water and sewer extension to route 106, to see what could 
happen. A lot of people want to see some other tax relief, and taxes need to be offset somehow. 
Donna commented that perhaps with the new relationship developed with Fire Department and 
the City of Laconia a conversation with the City water/sewer should be considered as well. 
Additionally she heard that the primary concerns are taxes, rezoning and the bank building. She 
suggested the Board and Planning Board get together and look at zoning.  
 

Selectman Pike commented that before water you need sewer. A plan was brought to the 
Town to buy the sewer at the top of Route 106 and the answer was no. Everyone wants 
development but they don’t want to pay for it. The town’s proximity with Route 140 and exit 20 
has helped the area, but Route 106 is not going to get any fast food business interest and AE 
Mitchell hasn’t been able to sell any of his property on Route 106. Eptam was built where it is 
because of the proximity to exit 20 to allow easier access for employees that are coming from 
other areas. There is sewer on both sides of route 106 and the Town doesn’t own it. Selectman 
Pike added that he is not opposed to growth.  
 

Chairman Mooney added that she believes Laconia Waterworks wants to talk to the town. 
She believes it’s going to come down to; what’s it going to cost to get it down Route 106. She 
thinks the reality is that in order for Route 106 to be developed it is going to have to have water 
and sewer. Donna commented that you have to have the conversations and if it’s not feasible 
then at least it was looked at.  

 
Linda Frawley added that the BCEDC has been a resource for years and perhaps they 

could assist.  Chairman Mooney expressed that the Board will have further discussions and she 
feels it should be reviewed again. Kevin Sturgeon added that more research needs to be done and 
zoning should be addressed first. Chairman Mooney commented that she feels some of the nice 
buildings have been done on Route 3 because of water/sewer being available. Selectman Cormier 
commented that this same conversation took place 12 years ago but things have changed and in 
addition to water/sewer the availability of broadband and Wi-Fi can now have an impact.  

 
The Board thanked Donna for coming in and providing them this information.  

 
Discussion with Kevin Sturgeon regarding Wareing Road 
 
 Kevin stated that after last meeting he still didn’t know why the Town is not paving the 
last 2/10th of a mile of Wareing Road. He thinks it’s a good idea to get truck traffic off Main St 
but feels it could be done with an upgrade to Wareing Road but leaving it as a gravel road. Kevin 
commented that the town can make deal with Parent Sand & Gravel (aka DBU Const), but what 
about Frank Dalton. It was noted that Frank Dalton is hauling minimally out of his pit at this 
time. Chairman Mooney indicated that she talked to Adam Towne the new owner of Parent Sand 
& Gravel and he expressed that they can’t change the flow of traffic until Wareing Road is 
upgraded, but will advertise the change, but not close that entrance. They do plan to put the 
scales and weigh house on the Wareing Road side of the pit. At some point they will not be able 
to come in off of Shaker Road but it will take time to educate. Chairman Mooney added that 
there is still 4 million yards of material to still come out of the pit which is approximately a 50 
year supply.  



 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 April 4, 2016 

Chairman Mooney advised that DBU Const. is the low bidder on the project. Her vote is 
to complete the road as proposed as the engineering has not been done to do entire road. 
Additionally this project has been being worked on for 2 years as part of their approvals with the 
Planning Board which included this new entrance. She added that tomorrow Ladd Hill Road 2nd 
phase bids will be opened and this is evidence of a project that has been done in sections, and 
Wareing Road can be done in that manner as well if the Town chooses. Kevin Sturgeon 
commented that he can’t believe an engineer would do all but 2/10th of road. He added that 
Hurricane Road should be number one on the list of road projects. Reggie Caldwell asked if the 
owners of the pit are willing to help with the cost. Chairman Mooney expressed that they are 
helping out with the low bid on the project. Reggie also asked why the town is building a road 
for a business. 

 
 Mark Mooney commented that the effort is to get the truck traffic off Main St.  There 

was discussion regarding all roads being built to support all traffic, and it was noted that the 
Parent pits prior ownership only created minimal use. The new ownership of the pit has created 
much more truck traffic which includes tractor trailers. Chairman Mooney added that the 
Planning Board has been working with new owners for 2 years and these discussions should 
have been at Planning Board level.  

 
Selectman Cormier noted that road plans can’t all be done at once so the town plans and 

reviews regularly and adjusts when necessary. There was a brief discussion regarding what the 
cost of the road upgrade would be without paving; which would be $202,750, with $113,000 in 
paving cost, and yearly maintenance for dust control would be approximately $4,000/year. Steve 
Hess Main Street resident commented that he has noticed the tractor trailers and they are much 
heavier; what happens if they crush sewer lines. Reggie asked why the owners of the pit aren’t 
paying toward the project. 
 
  
LRPA Annual Contact Renewal 7/1/16 – 6/30/17 
 
 TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board a letter from Grace McNamara regarding the 
LRPA-TV annual meeting where this coming year’s budget was discussed with the Board of 
Directors. There is an increase in the per viewer fee, and TA Beaudin is recommending the 
Board approve Belmont’s renewal contract at $8,558 which is based on 1556 subscribers. She 
noted that there are 41 regular programs of which 10 are new. There is an overall increase of 
32% in new programing. She noted that Grace will be meeting with Gilmanton Board of 
Selectmen tonight to try to get them to come back.  
 

Selectman Pike moved to accept the contract renewal with LRPA-TV at $8558 for July 1, 
2016 through June 30, 2017. Selectman Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   
 

Linda Frawley inquired what programing of Belmont’s is on the public access channels. 
TA Beaudin indicated that any of the shows videotaped, including the bandstand concerts, etc. 
She noted that the Town has been unsuccessful finding someone to video tape meetings or other 
events. Selectman Cormier added that the Board even approved paying someone to videotape 
programs and got no interest. TA Beaudin noted that there may be live streaming available in the 
future which would create video archives. 
  
 
 
 



 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 5 April 4, 2016 

Tax Deed Waivers 
 

TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board Deed Waivers that were prepared by the Town 
Clerk. She noted that there are 40 waivers with the majority of the waivers having up to date 
payment arrangements in place with the Town Clerks office. 
 
 Selectman Pike moved to accept the deed waiver list as presented. Selectman Cormier 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 
Wareing Road Bids 
 
  TA Beaudin advised the Board that it is the recommendation from the engineers that the 
Wareing Road low bid award go to DBU Construction for $316,020. Selectman Cormier 
expressed that he doesn’t see how this wasn’t seen as a conflict of interest as DBU is also Parent 
Sand & Gravel. TA Beaudin assured the Board that the engineering firm reviewed and made the 
decision. Selectman Pike suggest at the urging of the audience that the Board consider paving the 
last 2/10th of mile. Selectman Pike added that although the planning board made the decision 
because they thought it would stop excess traffic from traveling that way; where we are not 
paving is best area of the road. Jim Fortin offered that DBU and Nutter would have had the 
advantage on the bid because they have the materials right there and wouldn’t have the extra 
transportation cost that other bidders would have. Additionally he feels that because there 
business is there they have the best reason to go above and beyond. Selectman Cormier 
commented that they are also profiting on the project. TA Beaudin added that the construction 
oversight is done with the engineers.  
 

There was a brief discussion regarding getting the cost to pave the last section.  
Selectman Pike moved to accept DBU Construction as the low bidder of the Wareing Road 
project. Chairman Mooney seconded and the motion passed with Selectman Cormier voting 
opposed. Selectman Pike move to get pricing to have the last section of Wareing Road paved. 
Selectman Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Hoadley Road Bid Award 
 
 TA Beaudin advised the Board that the wetland permit for the Hoadley Road project had 
been received and the engineers are recommending the award of the bid to low bidder J Parker & 
Daughter for $300,070 with a reduction to $293,070 following change order #1. 
 
 Selectman Pike moved to award the Hoadley Road project bid to J Parker & Daughter as 
recommended. Selectman Cormier seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
DOT Letter regarding Route 106 Project 
 
 TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board a letter received from NH DOT addressing their 
concerns regarding the non-widening of certain areas of the road through the project. The letter 
indicated that they would not be making additional changes where the Board had concerns but 
would be willing to meet for further discussion. The Board agreed that they didn’t see any point 
in further discussions at this time. They also agreed that a letter of their displeasure with 
promises for proper shoulders throughout being ignored; should be sent to the State. TA Beaudin 
will prepare a letter for the Board to sign 
  
 



 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 6 April 4, 2016 

 The meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
            
      Ruth P. Mooney, Chairman 
 
 
            
      Ronald Cormier, Vice Chairman 
 
 
            
      Jon Pike 


